
CITY OF MILACA 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING WORK SESSION 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
JANUARY 28, 2026 

1. Call Meeting to Order 4:00 p.m.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call- Present: Mayor-Dave Dillan____    Council Members; Ken Muller____Norris Johnson____

Lindsee Larsen____ Tim Poorker______  Absent;____________________

4. Amend Adult Use Cannabis and Cannabis Business Cultivation Ordinance-First Reading MB___2nd___AIF___O__

5. Set date for February City Council Meeting MB___2nd___AIF___O__ 

6. Adjournment Time______________ MB___2nd___AIF___O__ 

§ 30.19 ORDER OF BUSINESS; AGENDA 

(C) Unless the Council, in its discretion, votes to consider matters not appearing on the agenda, no item

of business shall be considered unless it appears on the agenda for the meeting.

1



EXCERPT FROM DECEMBER 18, 2025 CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

d. Discussion – Cannabis-Mellow Fellow – Mayor Dillan stated Joe Opager, owner of Mellow Fellow,
has received an opportunity to get a cannabis license and it is important to have a good, solid, person
operating the business. City Attorney Damien stated the statues keep changing.  One of the changes is
setbacks and the interaction with our Ordinance.  The state did not make a specific definition of setbacks.
As the particular statute reads now in regard to setbacks and parks, it talks about attractions within a park
where minor children are present, including playgrounds and ballfields.  As a city, we can be more
restrictive than that and currently our Ordinance in regard to setbacks is more restrictive as we measure to
the property lines of the parks.  There is some conflict between a business owner and my interpretation
based on the laws.  I think it is important that the city try and be as clear in what we mean in our
Ordinance and try to define our Ordinances.  In an effort to solve not just this problem that exists with this
one particular business as it could be the same issue down the road.  We don’t want to spot zone, we don’t
want to run into an issue addressing setbacks because we want to benefit one business.  So, the city needs
to do is to define the word “attraction” for the city and for its individual parks so it is defined as in this
particular park what attractions are, such as, park, this bathroom, this playground, this ballfield, this
splash pad, whatever, these attractions are within all four parks.   So, the thought is, if the council can’t
take action, the first thing to happen would be to amend the zoning ordinance by holding a public hearing
before the Planning Commission, which could be January 12.  This would give the city time to publish
the public hearing, I would amend the Ordinance, then it would go before the Planning Commission and
then go to city council for first reading at your January meeting and then a second reading for your
February meeting.

Johnson asked what the distance is now and City Attorney Damien replied 500 feet is the setback and the 
way the Ordinance reads is from the property line of the park to the nearest access point of the business 
and this particular business is I think about 470 something.  But again, this should not be fixed for one 
business but rather for the city.   

Johnson stated that he agrees with Mayor Dillan in that the city has a relationship with this particular 
business and business owner and that could be helpful to have a good working relationship and a 
responsible owner.  Larsen asked City Attorney Damien if he could draft something up for the city to 
review, to which he agreed he would do.  Damien further stated the first thing to do would be for Tammy 
to publish the public hearing, he would draft up an amendment to the Ordinance defining setbacks or 
adding attractions to the Ordinance.  City Manager Pfaff stated that for the future, each park would have 
their own definition of attractions like swing set, playground, bandshell, Gorecki Center, etc.  City 
Attorney Damien stated by the meeting date of the Planning Commission, there will be definitions of each 
park’s attractions with language that if something is built in the future, that it would be designed to 
include that.  Muller asked if we were to amend the setbacks and City Attorney stated no, we are not 
amending the setback numbers at all.  We are not changing the portion of the setback nor are we changing 
the language that says for the purpose of setbacks we measure to the property lines.  But, we are adding 
clarifying language in that section to make sure we are consistent with state statute.   

Larsen questioned that in this particular business the distance is 470 feet away but if you add attraction in 
there, and a swing set is 600 feet away, you can never move that swing set?  City Attorney stated we  
move nothing in the parks. Larsen asked what if we had to?  City Attorney Damien stated then we do it.  
He further stated nothing in the way that we do this, in any shape, form or fashion, restricts the city’s 
ability to do whatever we want to do, within the scope of the law, within any of the parks.  So, if you want 
to build something, if you want to move something, we can.  If the new distance creates a violation of 
setbacks because of what we’ve done, it makes that business a lawful, non-conforming use, which would 
put some restrictions on their building or expansion.  Larsen stated so they are grand-fathered in and 
Mayor Dillan stated that was an easier way to look at it.   

Mayor Dillan asked if the consensus was to move forward and council stated yes. 

2



CITY OF MILACA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
January 20, 2026 

6:00 P.M. 
 
1. OPEN PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING: Brett Freese- Committee Member (In Chairman 

Tolzman’s absence), called meeting to order @ 6:02 p.m. 
 
2. MEMBERS PRESENT: Roll Call: 
a. Brett Freese, Lainy Hoskins, Jake Lepper, Joel Millam, Mitch Siemers, Alex Veurink 
ABSENT Brad Tolzman 
b. Others Present: City Manager Tammy Pfaff, Assistant City Clerk Deloris Katke, Council Liaison 
Norris Johnson, City Attorney Damien F. Tovan 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM December 8, 2025: 
Committee Member Freese called for a motion to approve the minutes from December 8, 2025. 
Motion to approve minutes from December 8, 2025, made by Mitch Siemers, seconded by Joel 
Millam. No further discussion. All in favor.  
Motion passes. 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARINGS: Opened at 6:03 
5. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Public Hearing on Amend Ordinance #529- Define Attractions in Adult Use Cannabis 
and Cannabis Business and Cultivation Ordinance.  

-No public comment.  
 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: Closed at 6:03 
 
7. NEW BUSINESS:   

a. Public Hearing on Amend Ordinance #529- Define Attractions in Adult Use Cannabis 
and Cannabis Business and Cultivation Ordinance.  
City Attorney Damien Tovan explained to the committee that the amendment to 
Ordinance #529 is in response to a change in wording by the State of MN to define what 
constitutes an “attraction” in a city park, clarifying cannabis “retail” business, and 
clarifying requirements for cannabis business.  Mr. Tovan noted that this likely will not 
be the last time the city will need to amend their ordinances related to these types of 
business as the State of Minnesota’s requirements continue to evolve.  PC Members 
Millam and Freese questioned how these changes could result in lawsuits or the closure 
of legal businesses, with Mr. Tovan addressing these questions.  A motion to 
recommend approval of this amendment was made by PC Member Hoskins, seconded 
by PC Member Veurink.  No further discussion.  All in favor.  Motion passes.  
 

8. MISCELLANEOUS: 
       -No miscellaneous business.  

 

3



9. ADJOURN: 
PC Member Freese called for a motion to adjourn. PC Member Hoskins made the 
motion to adjourn. PC Member Milliam seconded the motion. No further discussion. All 
In favor.  
Motion passes. 
Meeting adjourned at 6:20 p.m. 

4



EX
HI

BI
T 

A 

Di
st

an
ce

 fr
om

 M
el

lo
w

 F
el

lo
w

 to
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

lin
e 

of
 T

rim
bl

e 
Pa

rk
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
48

2 
fe

et
 

5



EX
HI

BI
T 

B 

Di
st

an
ce

 fr
om

 M
el

lo
w

 F
el

lo
w

 to
 A

tt
ra

ct
io

n 
in

 T
rim

bl
e 

Pa
rk

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

56
2 

fe
et

 

6



7



8



9



10



11

City of Milaca City of Milaca
Highlight



12



13



14



15



16

City of Milaca City of Milaca
Highlight

City of Milaca City of Milaca
Highlight



17



18



19



20



 

ORDINANCE NO. 554 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF MILACA ZONING ORDINANCE TITLE 

XV (LAND USAGE); CHAPTER 156 (ZONING); SECTION 156.200(B), SECTION 
156.203 AND SECTION 156.207 

 
Additions are indicated by underline.  Deletions are indicated by strikethrough. 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILACA, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 
 ___.01 Intent 
 ___.02 Amendment 
 ___.03 Amendment 

___.04 Reaffirmation 

§ ___.01 INTENT.  
 
 The city intends to amend the following sections within the zoning ordinance Title XV 
(Land Usage); Chapter 156 (Zoning): 

1. Section 156.200 (Purpose and Intent); Subsection B (Definitions); providing for a 
definition of an “Attraction” within a city park that is regularly used by minors. 

2. Section 156.203 cannabis business to be clarified as cannabis retail business 
3. Section 156.207 (Site Requirements for Cannabis); Subsections D and E to clarify the 

requirements for Cannabis Businesses. 

§___.02 THE CITY OF MILACA ZONING ORDINANCE TITLE XV (LAND USAGE); 
CHAPTER 156 (ZONING); SECTION 156.200 (PURPOSE AND INTENT); 
SUBSECTION B (DEFINITIONS) IS HEREBY AMENDED AS FOLLOWS. 
 
 ATTRACTION REGULARLY USED BY MINORS or ATTRACTION.  An attraction 
within a city park that is regularly used by minors includes but is not limited to the following: 
Warming houses; the Gorecki Center; Hockey rinks; Splash pads and Pools; Playground 
equipment areas; Volleyball, Skateboarding, Basketball, and outdoor sport courts; Bandshells; 
Ball Fields and athletic fields; Walking and Hiking trails; Park Shelters;  Campsites; Disc Golf 
areas; Cornhole areas; Exercise equipment areas; Swing set areas; Veteran Memorials and Army 
Tank display areas; Park Restroom Facilities; and Archery equipment and range areas.  This 
includes any future attractions added to any city parks. 
 

§___.03 THE CITY OF MILACA ZONING ORDINANCE TITLE XV (LAND USAGE); 
CHAPTER 156 (ZONING); SECTION 156.203 (REQUIREMENTS FOR CANNABIS 
RETAIL BUSINESS) AND SECTION 156.207 (SITE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
CANNABIS); SUBSECTIONS D AND E IS HEREBY AMENDED AS FOLLOWS. 
 

21



 

§ 156.203  REQUIREMENTS FOR CANNABIS RETAIL BUSINESS. 
      (A)  The city shall prohibit the operation of a cannabis retail business within 1,000 feet of a 
school (as defined in Section 156.200(B). 
      (B)  The city shall prohibit the operation of a cannabis retail business within 500 feet of a 
daycare (as defined in Section 156.200(B), residential treatment facility (as defined in Section 
156.200(B), churches, synagogue, mosque, temple, or building which is used primarily for 
religious worship and related religious activities, libraries, recreational centers, halfway houses 
or of an attraction within a public park that is regularly used by minors, including a playground 
or athletic field.  
      (C)  The city shall prohibit the operation of a cannabis retail business within 150 feet of 
another cannabis retail business.   
      (D)  Pursuant to Minn. Stat. §462.363, nothing in this ordinance shall prohibit an active 
cannabis retail business or a cannabis retail business seeking registration from continuing 
operation at the same site if a school, daycare, residential treatment facility or attraction within a 
public park that is regularly used by minors moves within the minimum buffer zone. 
(E) The city shall limit the number of local retail registrations for cannabis retailers, including 
cannabis microbusinesses and cannabis mezzobusinesses with retail endorsements, to one retail 
registration per 12,500 residents. 
 
§ 156.207  SITE REQUIREMENTS FOR CANNABIS 
      (D)  A straight-line drawing shall be prepared within thirty (30) days prior to application 
depicting the property lines and the structures containing any of the uses listed in Section 
156.203. The drawing shall be reviewed by the  City for accuracy. For purposes of this section, a 
use shall be considered existing or established at the time an application is submitted. In the 
event of a dispute between the applicant and the city as to the accuracy of the drawing, the City 
may order the applicant to provide a drawing with the information required under this subsection 
prepared by a registered land surveyor. For setback purposes, a public park or recreational area is 
land which has been designated for park or recreational activities, including, but not limited to, a 
park, playground, nature trails, swimming pool, reservoir, athletic field, basketball or tennis 
courts, pedestrian/bicycle paths, wilderness areas, or other similar public land within the city 
which is under the control, operation, or management of the city park and recreation authorities. 
The drawing shall include distances from uses as defined in 156.200(B).  
 
      (E)  For the purpose of Section 156.207(D), measurement shall be made in a straight line, 
without regard to the intervening structures or objects, from the nearest entrance used as the part 
of the premises where a cannabis retail business is conducted, to the nearest portion of the 
building, structure, or attraction (as defined in Section 156.200(B)) of a use listed in Section 
156.203. In the case where no building, structure, or attraction (as defined in Section 
156.200(B)) is present, measurement shall be made to the property line. Presence of a city, 
county, or other political subdivision boundary shall be irrelevant for purposes of calculating and 
applying the distance requirements of this section. Such distance shall be measured across 
property lines, regardless of ownership of the property. 

§____.04 REAFFIRMATION.   
 

22



 

 All provision of the City of Milaca Zoning Ordinance not otherwise amended herein are 
reaffirmed in all respects and remain in full force and effect. 
 
Adopted this ____day of __________________, 2026.                                                           
 
       _________________________________ 
       Mayor Dave Dillan 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________                                                                  
Tammy Pfaff, City Manager 

23


	554 Milaca Zoning Ordinance Amendment RE Definition of Attraction_EM FIRST READING.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 554
	AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF MILACA ZONING ORDINANCE TITLE XV (LAND USAGE); CHAPTER 156 (ZONING); SECTION 156.200(B), SECTION 156.203 AND SECTION 156.207 (PURPOSE AND INTENT); SUBSECTION B (DEFINITIONS)
	§ ___.01 Intent.
	§___.02 The CITY OF MILACA ZONING ORDINANCE TITLE XV (LAND USAGE); CHAPTER 156 (ZONING); SECTION 156.200 (PURPOSE AND INTENT); SUBSECTION B (DEFINITIONS)(ADULT USE CANNABIS AND CANNABIS BUSINESS CULTIVATION IS HEREBY AMENDED AS FOLLOWS.
	.
	§___.03 THE CITY OF MILACA ZONING ORDINANCE TITLE XV (LAND USAGE); CHAPTER 156 (ZONING); SECTION 156.203 (REQUIREMENTS FOR CANNABIS RETAIL BUSINESS) AND SECTION 156.207 (site requirements for cannabis); SUBSECTIONs D and e IS HEREBY AMENDED AS FOLLOWS.
	§____.04 reaffirmation.




